
- over - 

AGENDA FOR 

BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

Elkhart Community Schools 
Elkhart, Indiana 

 

August 28, 2018 
 

CALENDAR 
 

Aug 28 5:30 p.m. Public Work Session, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Aug 28 5:30 p.m. Executive Session, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Aug 28 7:00 p.m. Regular Board Meeting, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Sep 11 5:30 p.m. Public Work Session, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Sep 11 7:00 p.m. Regular Board Meeting, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Sep 18 7:00 a.m. Public Work Session, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Sep 25 5:30 p.m. Executive Session, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Sep 25 7:00 p.m. Regular Board Meeting, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

 

******************* 

A. CALL TO ORDER/PLEDGE 
 

B. THE ELKHART PROMISE 

 
C. INVITATION TO SPEAK PROTOCOL 

 

D. GIFT ACCEPTANCE - The administration recommends Board acceptance 
with appreciation of recent donations made to Elkhart Community Schools. 
 

E. MINUTES 
August 14, 2018 – Regular Board Meeting 
August 21, 2018 – Public Work Session 

 
F. TREASURER'S REPORT 

 

 Consideration of Claims 
 

 Financial Report – January 1, 2018 – July 31, 2018 

 
 Fund Loans – The Business Office reports on fund loans made at the end of 

July, 2018. 

 
 Resolution Authorizing Use of Design/Build Method of Contracting – The 

Business Office recommend adoption of a resolution authorizing the use of 

design/build method of contracting for the proposed 2018 Elkhart Area 
Career Center Annex Building Project. 
 

 
 



BOARD AGENDA August 28, 2018 
 
 

2 
   

 Extra-Curricular Purchase Requests - The Business Office seeks Board 
approval of extra-curricular purchase requests. 

 
 Monthly Insurance Update 

 

 Energy Education Report 
 

 School Auction Summary 

 
G. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

 

 Board Policy 5771 – Search and Seizure - The administration presents 
revisions to Board Policy 5771 – Search and Seizure with suggested changes 
from the August 14th regular meeting. 

. 
 Administrative Regulation JFG-2 – Personal Search - The administration 

presents revisions to Administrative Regulation JFG-2 – Search and Seizure 

as initially presented at the August 14th regular meeting. 
 

 2019 Board Meeting Schedule – The administration presents the proposed 

Board of School Trustees meeting schedule for 2019 as initially presented 
at the August 14th regular meeting. 

 
H. NEW BUSINESS 

 

 Public Hearing – A public hearing will be held on Roosevelt Elementary 
School 2016-2017 Performance Rating. 
 

 New Course Offerings – The administration presents two new proposed 
course offerings for Board review. 
 

 Grants – The administration seeks Board approval for the submission of 
grants as recommended by the administration. 
 

I. PERSONNEL 
 

 Conference Leaves - It is recommended the Board grant conference leave 
requests in accordance with Board Policy to staff members as recommended 
by the administration. 
 

 Certified and Classified Staff - See the report and recommendations of the 
administration. 
 

J. INFORMATION AND PROPOSALS 
 

 From Audience 
 

 From Superintendent and Staff 
 

 From Board 
 

K. ADJOURNMENT 
 











 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

DATE: 8/22/18 
 

TO:  Mark Mow, Interim Superintendent 
       Board of School Trustees 

 

FROM:  Tervonda Goins, Principal 
 Lindsay Evans, Social Worker 
 

RE:    Donation Approval 
 

Pinewood Elementary received a generous donation from Jennifer and Darrell Higgins, whose children 
attend Pinewood. The donation included hygiene products, food, and clothing to help Pinewood families 
and children in need. Their donation is valued at $500.  
 

I am requesting approval from the Board of School Trustees to accept this donation and that an 
appropriate letter of acknowledgement and appreciation is sent to: 
 

Jennifer and Darrell Higgins 

22624 Remington Ct 
Elkhart, IN 46514 
 

 



MINUTES 
OF THE REGULAR MEETING 

OF THE BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 
 

Elkhart Community Schools 
Elkhart, Indiana 
August 14, 2018 

 
J.C. Rice Educational Services Center, 2720 California Road, Elkhart – at 

7:00 p.m. 
 

Place/Time 

Board Members Karen S. Carter Susan C. Daiber 
Present: Douglas K. Weaver Rodney J. Dale 

 Jeri E. Stahr Glenn L. Duncan 
  Carolyn R. Morris 
   

 

Roll Call 

President Karen Carter called the regular meeting of the Board of School 
Trustees to order.  The pledge of allegiance was recited. 
 

Call to 
Order 

Rod Roberson, director of co-curricular programming, recited the Elkhart 
Promise. 
 

The Elkhart 
Promise 

Mrs. Carter discussed the invitation to speak protocol. 
 

 

By unanimous action, the Board approved the minutes for the July 24, 

2018 – Regular Board Meeting. 
 

Approval of 

Minutes 

By unanimous action, the Board approved payment of claims totaling 

$9,266,204.25 as shown on the August 14, 2018, claims listing.  
(Codified File 1819-11) 
 

Payment of 

Claims 

President Carter opened the public hearing on land disposition by 
exchange. 

 
Kevin Scott, chief financial officer, explained the proposed land swap of 
3.79 acres located on West Bristol Street and owned by the district 

(currently housing diesel tech) for 5.65 acres of unimproved land 
directly adjacent to district owned property known as the Annex. 
 

President Carter opened the floor for public comment, with no 
comments from the audience members, President Carter declared the 
hearing closed. 

 

Public Hearing on 
Land Disposition 

by Exchange 
 

By unanimous action, the Board adopted a resolution of the School Board 
Approving Possible Exchange of Real Property.  (Codified File 1819-12) 

Resolution 

By unanimous action, the Board approved proposed school fundraisers 

in accordance with Board policy.  The funds raised through the listed 
activities are deposited into each school’s extra-curricular fund. (Codified 
File 1819-13) 

Fundraisers 



2 
 

By unanimous action, the Board approved an extra-curricular purchase 
request from Memorial for a slushy machine in the amount of $1,599.99 

for use in the concession stands. 
 

Extra-Curricular 
Purchase 

The Board was presented proposed revisions to Board Policy 5771 - 

Search and Seizure, for initial consideration.  Following questions from 
the Board and audience members, Doug Thorne, district counsel/chief of 
staff, stated paragraphs E and F will be revised to address concerns.  

 

Board Policy 

5771 
 

The Board was presented proposed revisions to Administrative 
Regulation JFG-2 – Personal Search, for initial consideration. 

 

Administrative 
Regulation JFG-2 

 
The Board was presented new Board Policy 6605 – Crowdfunding, for 
initial consideration.  After lengthy discussion, a decision was made to 

create a committee to review the particulars of the policy and return at 
a future meeting with revisions to the policy and associated 
administrative regulation. 

 

Board Policy 
6605 

The Board was presented new Administrative Regulation KII – 
Crowdfunding, for initial consideration. 

 

Administrative 
Regulation KII 

By unanimous action, the Board approved proposed revisions and 

waived second reading of Board Policy 3422.07S – Executive Assistants’ 
Salary Schedule with noted change of effective date. 
 

Board Policy 

3422.07S 
 

By unanimous action, the Board approved proposed revisions and 
waived second reading of Board Policy 3422.12S – Employees in 
Miscellaneous Positions Compensation Plan. 

 

Board Policy 
3422.12S 
 

By unanimous action, the Board approved proposed revisions and 
waived second reading of Board Policy 3422.15S – Permanent Substitute 

Teachers’ Compensation Plan. 
 

Board Policy 
3422.15S 

 

The Board was presented the proposed Board of School Trustees 

meeting schedule for 2019 for initial consideration. 

2019 Board 

Meeting 
Schedule 
 

By unanimous action, the Board approved a School Services Secondary 
Agreement with The Crossing for 2018-2019.  Tony England, assistant 
superintendent of student services, stated the change to the contract 

involves a per enrolled student fee as opposed to a group fee in previous 
years. (Codified File 1819-14) 
 

Agreement – 
The Crossing 
 

By unanimous action, the Board approved submission of the following 
grants to the Indiana Department of Education: Non English Speaking 
Program (NESP) for $592,732.50; Title II, Part A Supporting Effective 

Instruction for $514,174.67; Title III Immigrant Influx for $16,076.35; 
and Title II (English Language Learners) for $272,136.00. (Codified File 
1819-15) 

 

Grants 



3 
 

By unanimous action, the Board approved conference leave requests in 
accordance with Board policy for staff members as recommended by the 

administration on the August 14, 2018 listings. (Codified File 1819-16) 
 

Conference 
Leaves 

By unanimous action, the Board approved the following personnel 
recommendations of the administration: 
 

Personnel 
Report 

Administrative appointment of Lindsay Cox, supervisor of special 

services at ESC, effective August 9, 2018. 
 

Administrative 

Appointment 
 

Employment of the following forty-two (42) certified staff 

members for the 2018-2019 school year:  
Ashley Arms - grade 2 at Osolo 
Chelsea Atchison - grade 4 at Pinewood 

Sarah Bainbridge - young adult program/special education at 
Memorial 

Cami Berkey - college and career readiness at West Side 

Michelle Bohlmann - grade 4 at Eastwood 
Jaime Borkholder - grade 6 at Hawthorne 
Kendall Boyd - grade 1 at Roosevelt 

Lindsey Brander - dean of behavior at Pierre Moran 
Angela Brown - special education at Central 
Heather Burton - grade 5 at Roosevelt 

Kristina Charleston - language arts at West Side 
Laura Corwin - math at Memorial 
Marie Cossin - grade 6 at Daly 

Crystal Davis - physical education at West Side 
Pamela Duff - Spanish at Central 
Alicia Elbert - grade 4 at Eastwood 

Matthew Gish - art at Pinewood 
Anthony Gouin - machine trades at EACC 
Nakeyta Hardy - grade 3 at Bristol 

Jennifer Henry - math at Pierre Moran 
Carmen Hiatt - grade 4 at Daly 
Brandi Holycross - grade 1 at Feeser 

Mackinzie Kempton - grade 5 at Daly 
Ashley Kiehl - grade 5 at Daly 
Melissa LaPlace - art at Roosevelt 

Michelle McClintic - grade 4 at Pinewood 
Trista McIntosh - grade 2 at Roosevelt 

Jessica McIntyre - grade 1 at Daly 
Sarah Oman - kindergarten at Bristol 
Samantha Peterson - grade 3 at Cleveland 

Cassandra Pratt - kindergarten at Hawthorne 
Alexandria Roskos - physical education at Beck 
Sidney Shafer - social studies at Memorial 

Jolynn Shull - science at Central 
Yoketha Sims - Air Force JROTC at Central 
Hilary Singrey - grade 6 at Monger 

Karen Sproul - pre-K at Hawthorne 
Gina Stone - intervention at Roosevelt 

Certified 

Employment 
 



4 
 

Jennifer Tashijan - language arts at North Side 
John Tomac - social studies at Central 

Kelly Tooker - art at West Side 
Nancy Whittaker - health occupations at EACC 
 

Resignation of the following twenty-four (24) certified staff 
members effective on the dates indicated: 

Jacob Balch - business at Central, 6/8/18 

Julie Clarke - grade 3 at Bristol, 6/8/18 
Jill Coffman - grade 1 at Feeser, 6/8/18 
Tina Davidhizer - math at Memorial, 6/8/18 

Emily Fell - FACS at West Side, 6/8/18 
Melissa Forbes - Spanish at Central, 6/8/18 
Lindsay Gagyi - grade 2 at Daly, 6/8/18 

Hillary Harder - music at Roosevelt, 6/8/18 
Bibi Hardrict - academic dean at Monger, 6/15/18 
Andrea Herron - FACS at Central, 6/8/18 

Peter Hoffman - science at Central, 6/8/18 
Kathleen MacFarlane - grade 1 at Roosevelt, 6/8/18 
Shaun McAllister - physical education at Beck, 6/8/18 

Dionne McKaskle - grade 4 at Pinewood, 6/8/18 
Rachael Meyers - FACS at Memorial, 6/8/18 

Alia Munley - art at Memorial, 6/8/18 
Linda Ogle - special education at Memorial, 6/8/18 
Kaitlin Putt - speech pathologist at Bristol, 6/8/18 

Summer Runyan - early college counselor at Memorial, 
6/15/18 

Marilyn Torres - language arts at West Side, 6/8/18 

Julie Willard - math at Memorial, 6/8/18 
Shannon Wingard - grade 6 at Beck, 6/8/18 
Ileana Yoder - kindergarten at Daly, 6/10/18 

Joshua Yoder - math at West Side, 6/8/18 
 

Certified 
Resignation 
 

Rescinded professional leave for certified staff member Susan 

Fritschi, grade 1/2 split at Feeser. 
 

Rescinded 

Leave 
 

Retirement of certified employee, Peggy Powell, Kindergarten at 

Feeser with 22 years of service. 
 

Certified 

Retirement 
 

Employment of the following two (2) classified employees who 

have successfully completed their probationary period on dates 
indicated: 

Michael Kutz - custodian at Beck, 8/6/18 

Billy Sanders - custodian at Pinewood, 8/13/18 
 

Classified 

Employment 
 

Retirement of the following two (2) classified employees effective 

on the dates indicated, with years of service in parenthesis: 
Bobbie Gullota - paraprofessional mild intervention at 

Pinewood, 6/8/18, (19) 

Marilyn Vela - custodian at Beardsley, 8/3/18, (17) 

Classified 

Retirement 



5 
 

Resignation of the following twenty-four (24) classified employees 
effective on the dates indicated: 

Claudine Anderson - vet paraprofessional at EACC, 6/8/18 
Madison Bartley - intense paraprofessional at Memorial, 

6/8/18 

Cordelia Brown - food service at Central, 6/8/18 
Sheila Brown - instructional paraprofessional at Central, 

6/8/18 

Marla Burton - bus helper at Transportation, 6/8/18 
Jenna Carper - mild intervention paraprofessional at Pierre 

Moran, 6/8/18 

Rachael Chigwada - food service at Cleveland, 6/8/18 
Timothy Gallagher - bus driver at Transportation, 6/8/18 
Victor Gaucin - bus driver at Transportation, 6/8/18 

Donald Lowe - bus driver at Transportation, 6/8/18 
Rebecca Mathes - cafeteria manager at Cleveland, 8/22/18 
Carla Moore - food service at Daly, 6/8/18 

Elizabeth Niemeyer - lunch paraprofessional at Pinewood, 
6/8/18 

Alma Parnell - technology paraprofessional at Cleveland, 

6/8/18 
Kristin Thalheimer - food service at Memorial, 6/8/18 

Michelle Ware - secretary at Pierre Moran, 6/8/18 
 

Classified 
Resignation 

 

Termination of classed employee Lavette Getter, lunch 

paraprofessional at West Side, in accordance with Board Policy 
3139.01s effective 6/8/18. 
 

Classified 

Termination 

An audience spoke regarding lack of homework from Beck and filters for 
student Ipads.  In response, Jason Inman, director of technology, stated 
the Ipads have an Umbrella filter for adult content. 

 

From the 
Audience 
 

An audience member spoke concerning the rate teachers are leaving the 
district, a potential referendum, need for improved benefits, wages and 

cultural training.  

From the 
Audience 

  



6 
 

The meeting adjourned at approximately 8:05 p.m. 
 

Adjournment 

APPROVED: 
 
  ____________________________________ 

  Karen S. Carter, President 
 
 

  ____________________________________ 
  Douglas K. Weaver, Vice President 
 

 
  ____________________________________ 
  Jeri E. Stahr, Secretary 

 
 

____________________________________ 

  Susan C. Daiber, Member 
 
 

____________________________________ 
  Rodney J. Dale, Member 

 
 

____________________________________ 

  Glenn L. Duncan, Member 
 
 

  _____________________  ______________ 
  Carolyn R. Morris, Member 

Signatures 

 



MINUTES OF THE 
PUBLIC WORK SESSION 

OF THE 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 

 

Elkhart Community Schools 
Elkhart, Indiana 

 
August 21, 2018 

 

J.C. Rice Educational Services Center, 2720 California Road, Elkhart – at 
7:00 a.m. 
 

Place/Time 

Board Members Karen S. Carter Susan C. Daiber 

Present: Douglas K. Weaver Glenn L. Duncan 

 Jeri E. Stahr Carolyn R. Morris 

   

Absent:  Rodney J. Dale 

   

ECS Personnel    

Present: Tony England Kevin Scott 

 Shawn Hannon Doug Thorne 
 Mark Mow  
   
   
   

 

Roll Call 

The Board heard a presentation from Kevin Scott, Chief Financial Officer, on 
the 2019 Budget and changes resulting from HEA 1009 and HEA 1167. 
 

Topics 
Discussed 

The meeting adjourned at approximately 7:55 a.m. 
 

Adjournment 

APPROVED: 
 
 
____________________________ 
Karen S. Carter, President 
 
 
____________________________ 
Douglas K. Weaver, Vice President 
 
 
____________________________ 
Jeri E. Stahr, Secretary 

 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Susan C. Daiber, Member 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Rodney J. Dale, Member 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Glenn L. Duncan, Member 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Carolyn R. Morris, Member 

 

 
 

Signatures 

 



PETTY CASH $ 500.00                     

GENERAL ACCOUNTS:                      

     Lake City Bank - Deposit Account 19,530,173.58          

     Lake City Bank – Accounts Payable (557,472.54)             

     Lake City Bank – Merchant Account                                            -                           

     Teachers Credit Union                                                           2,927,009.28            

     BMO Harris Bank (UMR insurance) 407,420.00               

SCHOOL LUNCH ACCOUNTS:
     Lake City Bank - Prepaid Lunch                                                   103,301.74               

     Change Fund            2,010.00                  

TEXTBOOK RENTAL ACCOUNTS:

     Chase Bank 2,993,024.72            

PAYROLL ACCOUNTS:

     Lake City Bank – Payroll Account                                        (91,889.67)               

     Lake City Bank – Flex Account                                                  68,203.55                

     

INVESTMENTS:

     Certificate of Deposit  -                           

                                                                                                                            

25,382,280.66$          

ACCOUNT BALANCES/INVESTMENT DETAIL
July 2018



 
INTERNAL MEMO 

 
J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

2720 California Road • Elkhart, IN 46514 

 

 
 
 
To:   Kevin Scott 
   
From:  Erica Purvis 
 
Date:   August 6, 2018 
  
Subject: Temporary Inter-fund Loans 
 
 
The following temporary inter-fund loans have been executed effective 7/31/2018: 
 
$333,000.00 from Fund 0200 Debt Service Fund to Fund 0250 Pension Debt Fund 
 
 
 

 

 

 
 



RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES
OF THE ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS, ELKHART COUNTY, INDIANA,

AUTHORIZING THE USE OF THE DESIGN-BUILD METHOD OF CONTRACTING
FOR THE PROPOSED 2018 ELKHART AREA CAREER CENTER ANNEX BUILDING
PROJECT AND APPROVING CERTAIN MATTERS IN CONNECTION THEREWITH

WHEREAS, the Board of School Trustees of the Elkhart Community Schools, Elkhart
County, Indiana (the “Board”), is considering (a) the construction and equipping of an additional
career center building to be operated by the Elkhart Community Schools, Elkhart County,
Indiana (the “School Corporation”), on all or a portion of vacant property located at the southeast
corner of the intersection of County Road 10 West and Whitmer Court, which upon completion
will be approximately 25,000 square feet  and will contain all or any portion of three to six
classrooms, shop areas for diesel technology, welding and machine trades, one or more office
areas, restroom facilities for staff and restroom facilities for students, locker rooms for the
students and necessary custodial and storage areas, (b) the installation of site improvements,
including, but not limited to, parking lots, sidewalks and landscaping to be done as a part of the
construction and equipping of the additional career center building described in clause (a), and
(c) all projects related to any of the projects set forth in clauses (a) or (b)(clauses (a) through and
including (c), collectively, the “2018 Elkhart Area Career Center Annex Building Project”); and

WHEREAS, the Board seeks the design and construction of the 2018 Elkhart Area Career
Center Annex Building Project, which 2018 Elkhart Area Career Center Annex Building Project
would otherwise qualify as a “public work” project under Indiana Code 36-1-12, as amended;
and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Indiana Code §36-1-12-1(e), as amended, the Board may enter
into a design-build contract for a public work project under Indiana Code 5-30, as amended, as
an alternative to the method of contracting provided under Indiana Code 36-1-12, as amended;
and

WHEREAS, the Board desires to (a) pursue the design and construction of the 2018
Elkhart Area Career Center Annex Building Project in accordance with Indiana Code 5-30, as
amended, (b) authorize the use of the design-build contracting method with respect to the 2018
Elkhart Area Career Center Annex Building Project, (c) authorize the use of the combined
request for qualifications and proposals as permitted under Indiana Code §5-30-5-1(c), as
amended, (d) appoint the members of the technical review committee required pursuant to
Indiana Code §5-30-4-1, as amended, (e) confirm the design criteria developer for the 2018
Elkhart Area Career Center Annex Building Project, and (f) authorize the taking of other actions
related thereto.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES
OF THE ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS, ELKHART COUNTY, INDIANA, as follows:

Section 1. Authorization.  The Board hereby authorizes the use of the design-build
contracting method for the 2018 Elkhart Area Career Center Annex Building Project in
accordance with Indiana Code 5-30, as amended. Furthermore, the Board hereby authorizes the
School Corporation and the Technical Review Committee (as hereinafter defined) to use a



2

combined request for qualifications and proposals as permitted under Indiana Code §5-30-5-1(c),
as amended, and to publish a notice of combined request for qualifications and proposals in
accordance with Indiana Code §5-30-5-1(c), as amended, and Indiana Code 5-3-1, as amended.

Section 2. Technical Review Committee; Voting Members.  Pursuant to the
provisions of Indiana Code §5-30-4-1, as amended, the following individuals are hereby
appointed to the 2018 Elkhart Community Schools Design-Build Technical Review Committee
(the “Technical Review Committee”), all of which will have the right to vote on all matters that
are considered by the Technical Review Committee:

(a) Jamie Lake, as an architect registered under Indiana Code 25-4, as
amended;

(b) Michael Lubbenhusen, as a professional engineer registered under Indiana
Code 25-31, as amended;

(c) Kevin Scott, as a representative of the Board;

(d) Tony Gianesi, as a representative of the Board;

(e) Bill Kovach, as a representative of the Board;

(f) Scott Sassaman, as a representative of the Board; and

(g) Jeff New, as a representative of the Board.

Section 3. Technical Review Committee; Chairperson. Tony Gianesi shall serve as
the Chairperson of the Technical Review Committee, and the Chairperson is hereby authorized
to appoint or otherwise designate a Secretary of the Technical Review Committee to keep all of
the minutes of the meetings of the Technical Review Committee.

Section 4. Design Criteria Developer.  The Board hereby appoints J. Lake
Architecture & Design to serve as the design criteria developer for the School Corporation with
respect to the 2018 Elkhart Area Career Center Annex Building Project.

Section 5. Other Actions.  The Board authorizes the Superintendent/Interim
Superintendent of the School Corporation (collectively, the “Superintendent”), the Chief of
Staff/District Counsel of the School Corporation (the “Chief of Staff”), the Chief Financial
Officer of the School Corporation (the “Chief Financial Officer”), the Chief Operations Officer
of the School Corporation (the “Chief Operations Officer”) or his/her designee (the “Designee”)
to take any and all actions the Superintendent, the Chief of Staff, the Chief Financial Officer, the
Chief Operations Officer or the Designee deem necessary or desirable to fulfill the purposes and
intent of this resolution, including, but not limited to, the publication of any and all notices
required under Indiana Code 5-30, as amended, for the use of the such design-build contracting
method for the 2018 Elkhart Area Career Center Annex Building Project, and any actions
heretofore made or taken be, and hereby are, ratified and approved.



3

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 28th day of August, 2018.

BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES OF THE ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS,
ELKHART COUNTY, INDIANA

AYE NAY

ATTEST:
Secretary of the Board of School Trustees

DMS JJQ 13106548v3



















 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 To:  Board of School Trustees 

  Mark T. Mow, Interim Superintendent 

  

From:  Kevin Scott 

  Chief Financial Officer 

 

Date:  August 24, 2018 

 

Re:  Employers Health 

 

Beginning this past January, Elkhart Community Schools became a member of Employers 

Health, a national coalition of employers seeking to more effectively manage health and 

benefit costs.  Through this coalition, ECS has been able to access prescription drugs for 

ECS employees through CVS/Caremark’s affiliation with Employers Health at rates less than 

the corporation could have achieved through the previous prescription model.  Additionally, 

this arrangement provides for a return of quarterly rebates typically paid to the Prescription 

Benefits Manager.  I am pleased to report, this summer the ECS’ medical plan received its 

first rebate payment of $72,130.00.  These rebate payments, along with the higher level of 

leverage the ECS gains by becoming a member of Employers Health, will continue to assist 

the corporation’s efforts to better manage the costs paid by the ECS Health Plan for medical 

care. 

KS/dls 

 







policy 
 
 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES STUDENTS 
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS Proposed Revised 5771/page 1 of 4 

(includes suggestions made during the 8/14/18 BST meeting) 

 
 
 
 

SEARCH AND SEIZURE 

 

 
The Board recognizes its obligation to balance the privacy rights of its students with 
its responsibility to provide student, faculty, and authorized visitors with a safe, 
hygienic, and alcohol/drug-free learning environment. 
 
In balancing these competing interests, the Board directs the Superintendent to 
utilize the following principles: 
 
 A. School Property 
   
  School facilities such as lockers and desks are school property 

provided for student use subject to the right of the Superintendent 
and his/her designee to enter the facility as needed and inspect all 
items in the facility searched.  Students shall not have an 
expectation of privacy in any facility provided by the school and 
shall not be permitted to deny entry to a Corporation administrator 
by the use of a lock or other device. 

   
 B. Student Person and Possession 
   
  Prior to a search of a student's person and personal items in the 

student's immediate possession, consent of the student shall be 
sought by an administrator.  If the student does not consent, such a 
search shall be permitted based only upon the administrator's own 
reasonable suspicion to believe the search will produce evidence of a 
violation of a law, school rule, or a condition that endangers the 
safety or health of the student or others.  Searches of the person of a 

student shall be conducted and witnessed by a person of the same 
gender as the student and shall be conducted in a private place.  A 
searched student's parent or guardian shall be notified of the search 
within twenty-four (24) hours if possible. 

   
  Searches, pursuant to this policy, shall also be permitted in all 

situations in which the student is under the jurisdiction of the 
Board as defined by I.C. 20-33-8-14. 



policy 
 
 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES STUDENTS 
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS Proposed Revised 5771/page 2 of 4 

(includes suggestions made during the 8/14/18 BST meeting) 

 
 
 
 
 Permission for a student to bring a vehicle on school property shall 

be conditioned upon consent of the search of the vehicle and all 
containers inside the vehicle by a school administrator with 
reasonable suspicion to believe the search will produce evidence of a 
violation of law, a school rule, or a condition that endangers the 
safety or health of the student driver or others.  The student shall 
have no expectation of privacy in any vehicle or in the contents of 
any vehicle operated or parked on school property. 

 
 The Superintendent may request the assistance of a law 

enforcement agency in implementing any aspect of this policy.  
Whenever law enforcement officers participate in a search on school 
property or at a school activity pursuant to a request from the 
Superintendent, the search shall be conducted by the law 
enforcement officers in accordance with the legal standards 
applicable to law enforcement officers and law enforcement agency 
policies. 

   
 C. Breath Test Instruments 
   
  Administrators are authorized to arrange for the use of breath-test 

instruments for the purpose of determining if a student has 
consumed an alcoholic beverage.  It is not necessary for the test to 
determine blood-alcohol level, since the Board has established a zero 
tolerance for alcohol use. 

   
 D. Use of Dogs 
   
  The Board authorizes the use of specially-trained dogs to detect the 

presence of drugs or devices such as bombs on school property 

under the conditions established in the Superintendent's 
administrative guidelines. 

   
 E. Use of Metal Detectors for a (Reasonable Suspicion) Search 
   
  When the school administration has reasonable suspicion to believe 

weapons are in the possession of an identified student, the 
administration is authorized to use a mobile metal detector to search 



policy 
 
 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES STUDENTS 
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS Proposed Revised 5771/page 3 of 4 

(includes suggestions made during the 8/14/18 BST meeting) 

 
the student. Any search of a student's person as a result of the 
activation of the detector will be conducted in private and in 
accordance with the policy on personal searches. Only school 
personnel who have been trained in the usage of metal detectors, law 
enforcement officers assigned to the school corporation, or school 
resource officers shall operate the metal detectors under the direction 
of the administration. 

   
 F. Use of Metal Detectors for Random Checks (Administrative 

Search) 
 
In view of the escalating school violence, the potential presence of 
weapons in our schools, and the school corporation’s duty to maintain 
a safe learning environment, the Board of School Trustees authorizes 
the use of metal detectors to check a student's person or personal 
effects. Only school personnel who have been trained in the usage of 
metal detectors, law enforcement officers assigned to the school 
corporation, or school resource officers shall operate the metal 
detectors under the direction of the administration.  
 
 School officials or law enforcement officers may conduct metal 

detector checks of groups of individuals if the checks are done 
in a minimally-intrusive, nondiscriminatory manner. Metal 
detector checks of groups of individuals may not be used to 
single out a particular individual or category of individuals. 

 
 If a school official or a law enforcement officer has reasonable 

suspicion to believe a particular student is in possession of an 
illegal or unauthorized metal-containing object or weapon, he 
or she may conduct a metal detector check of the student's 
person and personal effects. 

 
Notice of the Board policy and procedures on the use of metal 

detectors will be sent to parents and students and posted on the 
websites of the school corporation and of each middle and high 
school. 
 
The Superintendent shall develop procedures for implementing this 
policy.  The metal detector checks will be done only in accordance with 
the provisions of the Board policy and procedures by school personnel 
or law enforcement officers under the supervision of the school 



policy 
 
 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES STUDENTS 
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS Proposed Revised 5771/page 4 of 4 

(includes suggestions made during the 8/14/18 BST meeting) 

 
administrator 

 
Anything found in the course of a search or check pursuant to this policy which 
constitutes evidence of a violation of a law or a school rule or which endangers the 
safety or health of any person shall be seized and utilized as evidence if appropriate.  
Seized items of value shall be returned to the owner if the items may be lawfully 
possessed by the owner.  Seized items that may not lawfully be possessed by the 
owner shall be turned over to law enforcement. 
 
The building administrator shall promptly record in writing the following information 
for each search pursuant to this policy: 
 
 A. the information upon which the search was based 
   
 B. the time, date, location, students, or places searched, and persons 

present 
   
 C. a description of any item seized and its disposition 
   
 D. the time and date of notice to the parent or guardian in the case of 

the search of the person of a student 
 
The Superintendent shall prepare administrative guidelines to implement this policy. 
 
 
 
I.C. 20-33-8-32 
U.S. Constitution, 4th Amendment 
 
 
 
© NEOLA 2007 
 

January 1, 2017August 28, 2018 



JFG-2 
 Proposed Revised Administrative Regulation 

(includes suggestions made during the 8/14/18 BST meeting) 

 

 
PERSONAL SEARCH 
 
The principal, or another member of the school staff designated by the principal and 
acting at the direction of the principal, may search the person of a student who is on 
school property, or at a school-sponsored activity, if the staff member has reasonable 
grounds for suspecting that the search will reveal evidence that the student has violated 
or is violating either the law or school rules.  Searches of the person of a student shall 
be limited to: 
 
 1. Searches of the pockets of a student's clothing; 
 
 2. Searches of any object in the possession of the student, such as a purse, 

briefcase, bookbag, or similar object; 
  
 3. A "pat down" of the exterior of a student's clothing; and/or 
 
 4. Searches of outer garments, such as a hat, coat, jacket or footwear. 
 
Searches of the person of a student which require removal of clothing other than 
outerwear such as a hat, coat, jacket or footwear shall not be conducted by school 
personnel. 
 
In the event a student refuses to permit such a search, such refusal shall create a 
presumption, admissible in any suspension or expulsion proceeding, that the student 
has violated the school rule requiring that students submit to reasonable searches by 
authorized staff members, which violation shall be considered grounds for suspension 
or expulsion proceedings.  Prior to the admission into evidence of any such 
presumption, the hearing officer or panel must hear evidence of reasonable cause and 
make a finding that reasonable cause for the search existed.  If not rebutted to the 
satisfaction of the hearing officer or panel, the presumption shall be sufficient to 
support a suspension or expulsion recommendation. 
 
Personal searches of a student shall be conducted in a manner which is consistent with 
a balancing of the student's expectation of privacy as against the school's obligation to 
discover and eliminate illegal and/or prohibited items, protect the health, safety and 
welfare of students and school personnel, and generally promote good school order and 
educational purposes.  In deciding to make a personal search, and in determining the 
extent of such a search, factors taken into consideration may include the following: 
 

 1. The student's age, history and school record; 
 
 2. The prevalence and seriousness of the perceived problem in the school; 
 
 3. The perceived need for a search without delay; 
 
 4. The probative value and reliability of the information justifying the search; 

and 



Page 2 JFG-2 
Personal Search Administrative Regulation 
 
 
 5. The school official's prior experience with the student. 
 
A "pat down" search conducted by school officials of the person of a student shall be 
done in a private room by an official of the same sex as the student being searched.  At 
least one, but not more than three, additional adults of the same sex as the student 
being searched shall witness, but not participate in, the search.  The parent or guardian 
of any student searched shall be notified of the search as soon as reasonably possible.  
NOTE:  The requirements described in this paragraph do not apply to searches of 
objects in the student's possession such as book bags or purses nor shall they apply to 
searches of coats, hats, footwear and other outer garments. 
 
The student shall be given the opportunity to be present during a search of property or 
objects in his or her immediate possession. 

 
When items are seized or confiscated as a result of the search of a student's person or of 
objects in the possession of a student, each item seized shall be identified (tagged) and 
not co-mingled with any other items.  A receipt shall be issued to the student or lawful 
custodian of the student from whom the items were seized. 
 
USE OF METAL DETECTORS -- PROCEDURES 
 
The following procedures for the use of metal detectors in the schools are developed 
pursuant to Board policy on the Use of Metal Detectors.  The Superintendent may 
modify or expand these procedures in any manner consistent with the Board’s policy. 
 
A notice will be posted in a central location at each middle and high school stating 
weapons are not permitted at school and students may be required to submit to a metal 
detector check.  In addition, the metal detector policy and these procedures will be 
included in the student handbooks for each middle and high school.  Notice of the 
Board policy and procedures on the use of metal detectors will be sent to parents and 
students of each middle and high school on a regular basis throughout the school year. 
 A notice must be sent out before the beginning of school and at least once per semester 
during the school year.  The superintendent will determine the specific dates when the 
notice will be sent out throughout the school year.  
 
Metal Detector Random Checks 
 
A.  A principal, with the approval of the Superintendent, may decide to conduct a 

random metal detector check on all students before entering the school at the 
beginning of the school day, or he or she may select a group of students to be 

checked at random on a neutral, nondiscriminatory basis.  The group selected 
for a random check may be a classroom(s), a bus(es), or any other group of 
students determined by the principal in accordance with these procedures and 
board policy.  Metal detector checks of groups of individuals may not be used to 
single out a particular individual or category of individuals. 

 
B.  Before conducting the a random metal detector checks, the participating 

administrator or law enforcement officer ("officer") will explain the scanning 



Page 3 JFG-2 
Personal Search Administrative Regulation 
 

process to students, emphasizing the checks are intended to maintain safe 
schools. 

 
C.  An administrator or officer will escort each student with his or her personal 

effects into a designated area to proce`ed with the metal detector check.  An 
adult will closely observe students to make sure no objects are removed from 
pockets or personal effects. 

 
D.  The administrator or officer will ask the student to remove all metal-containing 

objects from his or her clothing and personal effects.  The administrator or 
officer will then scan the student without touching his or her body and scan 
the outside of the student's personal effects.  The metal detector scan of the 
student's person will be done by an adult who is the same sex as the student.  
If the student refuses to cooperate, the administrator or officer may proceed 

with the check in the presence of another adult. 
 
E.  If the metal detector is activated during the scanning of the student's effects, 

the administrator or officer will ask the student to open the bag, purse, etc., 
and the officer will proceed to look for weapons.  If the metal detector is 
activated during the scanning of the student's person, the student will be given 
a second opportunity to remove any metal-containing object from his person.  A 
second scan will be conducted and if the metal detector is activated again, an 
administrator or officer of the same sex will conduct a pat-down search of the 
student's outer clothing in the area where the metal detector was activated.  
The pat-down search will be done in a private room or area and in the presence 
of an adult witness, when feasible.  If the administrator or officer feels an object 
on the student's person, the student will be given an opportunity to remove the 
object.  If he or she refuses, the administrator or officer will remove the object 
from the student in the presence of an adult witness of the same sex. 

 
Metal Detector ChecksSearch of Individual Students 
 
Before conducting a metal detector check search of an individual student, the 
administrator or officer must have individualized reasonable suspicion the student is in 
possession of an illegal or unauthorized metal-containing object or weapon.  The 
provisions of the Board policy regarding personal searches and the use of metal 
detectors shall be followed under these circumstances. 
 
If a properly conducted search yields a weapon or any other illegal material, it shall be 
turned over to the proper legal authorities for disposition. 
 

NOTE:  The use of metal detectors or similar devices to scan objects in the possession of 
a student is not considered to be a personal search and is not subject to this regulation. 
 
 
 
 
 May, 1994August 28, 2018 



 

 

 
 
 

ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS 
Elkhart, Indiana 

 
Regular Board of School Trustees’ Meetings - 2019 

 
Regular meetings will be held at 7:00 p.m. in the J. C. Rice Educational Services Center, 

2720 California Road, Elkhart, Indiana unless otherwise noted. 
 

A public work session is held at 5:30 p.m. preceding each regular meeting in the J.C. Rice 
Educational Services Center, 2720 California Road, Elkhart, Indiana unless otherwise noted. 

 
January    8, 2019 July    9, 2019 

 
January 22, 2019 July  23, 2019 

 
February 12, 2019  
 

August  13, 2019 
 

February 26, 2019 
5 pm at No. Side prior to BB 

August  27, 2019 
 

March  12, 2019 September 10, 2019 
 

March  26, 2019 
 

September 24, 2019 

April    9, 2019 October   8, 2019  
 

April  23, 2019 October 22, 2019 
 

May  14, 2019 
 

November 12, 2019 
 

May  28, 2019  November 26, 2019 
 

June  11, 2019 December 10, 2019 
 

June  25, 2019 December 17, 2019* 
 

 
Any changes to the regular meeting schedule will be determined by Board action and special 
notice of any variance in date, time, or location will be posted and mailed to persons who have 
requested the same. 

Public Work Sessions - 2019 
Public work sessions will be held at 7:00 a.m. in the J. C. Rice Educational Services Center, 
2720 California Road, Elkhart.  
 

January 15, 2019 July  16, 2019 
February 21 and 22, 2019* August  20, 2019 
March  19, 2019  September 17, 2019 
April   16, 2019 October 15, 2019 
May  21, 2019 November 19, 2019 
June  18, 2019 December 17, 2019** 
* two-day retreat ** denotes 8:00 a.m. 

 
The Board’s meeting site is accessible to all persons. Any person requiring accommodation or assistance 
should contact the Secretary to the Board of School Trustees with the School Corporation’s administrative 
office, located at 2720 California Road, Elkhart, Indiana 46514, at 574-262-5506. 

 
For Board Approval – Aug. 28, 2018 



















What is the 

title of the 

grant?

What is the 

name of the 

granting 

agency/

entity?

Please list 

school/entity 

applying.

Individual/

contact applying 

for the grant?

What is the 

amount

applied for?

How will the grant funds be used 

and who will oversee the 

management of the grant?

Please explain how the grant funds will be 

used to support the district vision, focus, and 

goals. 

Please outline the grant budget for 

the funds requested.

What is the 

grant submission 

deadline?

HIgh Ability IDOE ECS Dawn McGrath $84,198 Identification, professional 
development, curriculum work and 
resources

The High Ability program supports the PLC 
question #4 - "What will we do if the student 
has already learned it." We are dedicated to 
meet the needs of every child, including those 
with high ability.

$6,586 - Identification limit imposed by 
IDOE; $77,612 for HA coordinators, 
reimbursement for HA coursework, and 
stipends for teachers.

8/31/2018

Pets in the 
Classroom

Pet Care Trust Pierre Moran 
Middle School/ 
Agriscience 
Education

Mrs. Starr The grant 
covers the cost 
of whatever pet 
I chose.

The grant will be used to purchase 
the pet, housing and food for the 
pet. The pet will be overseen by 
the teacher. Students will be 
required to help with daily 
maintenance, including cleaning 
the pen.

This supports the kids by giving them 
responsibility and something to take care of.

Everything will be covered by the grant. A 
portion for the animal, a portion for food and 
a portion for housing.

12/31/2018

Page 1 of 1

















 

INTERNAL MEMO 

 
J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

2720 California Road • Elkhart, IN 46514 

 

 

 

 

To:   Mr. Mark Mow 

From:  Ms. Cheryl Waggoner 

Date:  August 28, 2018 

 

Personnel Recommendations 

 

CERTIFIED 

 

a. New Certified Staff – We recommend the following new certified staff for employment in the 

2018-19 school year: 

 

Alyssa Anderson  Osolo/Kindergarten (temporary contract) 

 

Jennifer Beck   West Side/Math 

 

Nicolai Hyer   Memorial/Social Studies 

 

Julie Jerzak   Central/Business Ed 

 

Leah Michel   Hawthorne/Grade 4 

 

Michelle Tibbs   Memorial/Early College 

 

Brandon Whitsit  Memorial/Social Studies 

 

b. Resignation – We report the resignation of the following employees: 

 

Margaret Agnew  Hawthorne/Grade 4 

Began:  8/13/07   Resign:  8/17/18 

 

David Delgado   Central/AF JRROTC 

Began:  8/24/16   Resign:  8/31/18 

 

Lance Carter   Memorial/Math 

Began:  8/4/15   Resign:  6/8/18 

 

Angela Irwin   Woodland/Grade 3 

Began:  8/14/18   Resign:  8/15/18 

 

Michael McCauley  West Side/Math 

Began:  8/11/08   Resign:  6/8/18 

 

Adam Meyers   Memorial/Social Studies 

Began:  8/13/07   Resign:  6/8/18 



 
 

Page 2 of 3 
 

 

Jennifer Mohrbach  Daly/Grade 2 

Began:  3/24/13   Resign:  6/8/18 

 

Sidney Shafer   Memorial/Social Studies 

Began:  8/14/18   Resign:  8/22/18 

 

Corey Sheets   Osolo/Kindergarten ~ Grade 1 

Began:  10/3/16   Resign:  8/24/18 

 

Heather Walker  Memorial/Language Arts 

Began:  8/13/12   Resign:  6/8/18 

 

Bryon Whitten   Memorial/Social Studies 

Began:  8/22/05   Resign:  6/8/18 

 

 

c. Maternity Leave – We recommend a maternity leave for the following employee: 

 

Brenda Cruz   West Side/ENL 

Begin:  10/8/18   End:  11/2/18 

 

d. Administrative Transfer – The administration recommends the re-assignment of the following 

employee effective August 20, 2018: 

 

Kevin Beveridge  Roosevelt/Assistant Principal 

    Supervisor of Instruction 

 

 

 

CLASSIFIED 

 

 

a. Resignation – We report the resignation of the following employees: 

 

Jacqie Abbott   Career Center/ Paraprofessional 

Began: 5/8/17   Resign: 6/8/18 

 

Bianca Avendano  Transportation/Bus Driver 

Began: 5/17/17   Resign: 6/8/18 

 

Debra Baker   Hawthorne/Paraprofessional 

Began: 9/8/15   Resign: 6/8/18 

 

Sierra Coulahan  Daly/ Paraprofessional 

Began: 1/30/18   Resign: 9/4/18 

   

Kimberly Craig  Beardsley/ Food Service 

Began: 3/5/18   Resign: 6/8/18 



 
 

Page 3 of 3 
 

 

Robin Creer   Transportation/Bus Driver 

Began: 10/16/17  Resign: 6/8/18 

 

Hannah Efsits   West Side/Paraprofessional 

Began: 9/7/17   Resign: 6/8/18 

 

Luella Hanks   North Side/Paraprofessional 

Began: 10/19/04  Resign: 6/8/18 

 

Jessica Leng   North Side/Food Service 

Began: 9/8/14   Resign: 6/8/18 

 

Gary McDaniel  Building Services/Maintenance 

Began: 5/1/17   Resign: 8/3/18 

 

Jason Paulson   Building Services/Custodian 

Began: 9/7/99   Resign: 9/4/18 

 

Heather Rhodes  Memorial/ Food Service 

Began: 8/14/17   Resign: 8/29/18 

 

Casey Ruble   Transportation/Bus Driver 

Began: 10/02/17  Resign: 6/8/18 

 

Sanara Warren  Transportation/Bus Driver  

Began: 8/24/05   Resign: 8/17/18 

 

Nancy Whittaker  Career Center/Paraprofessional 

Began: 1/8/18   Resign: 6/8/18 

 

Sue Williams   Daly/Paraprofessional 

Began: 8/13/16   Resign: 6/8/18     

 

Deidre Wright   Transportation/Bus Driver 

Began: 11/10/14  Resign: 6/8/18 

 

Karen Young   Beck/Paraprofessional 

Began: 2/6/18   Resign: 6/8/18 

 

a. Unpaid Leave Request  – We recommend an unpaid leave of the following employee: 

 

Anita Byrd   Beardsley/Food Service 

Start: 8/22/18   End: 6/5/19 


	Agenda
	Gift Acceptance - EACC
	Gift Acceptance - ECS Athletic Facilities
	Gift Acceptance - ECS
	Gift Acceptance - Pinewood
	Minutes - Regular Meeting August 14 2018
	Minutes - Public Work Session August 21 2018
	Balance Sheet - July
	Inter-fund Loan
	Resolution Authorizing Use of Design Build
	Extra Curricular Purchase Requests
	Monthly Insurance Report
	Employers Health Memo
	Metal Detectors Memo
	Board Policy 5771
	Administrative Resolution JFG-2
	Board Meeting Schedule 2019 2nd
	New Course Offering - ACP
	New Course Offering - Everyone Can Code
	Grant Submissions
	2018-2019 EEF Fall Teaching Grants
	Conference Leave Requests
	Conference Leave Requests - Perkins
	Personnel Report

